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- KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEN[ENT

(a) Background lnformatlon _ '
Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service (KEPHIS) is a regulatory body established by the

'KEPHIS Act No.54 of 2012, The role of the Corporation is to undertake regulatory function in the

agr1cultural sector on matters regarding plant protectron seeds and plant varieties to assure quality
of agrlcultural mputs and produce

(b) . Mandate

a)
b
)
- d)

f) .

8)

h)

)

k)
Dy

‘The fl.lllClIlOI]S of KEPHIS are outlmed in the KEPH[S Act No 34 of 2012 as follows

Regulate matters relatlng to plant protectmn seeds and plant varletles N

Administer dnd enforce Samtary and Phytosamtary measures; .

Support the admmlstratron and-enforcement of food safety measures; :

Establish service laboratories- to monitor the quallty and levels of toxic residues i in agro

: 1nputs 1rr1gat10n water, plants, soils and produce

Be the prmclpal advrsor to the Government on 1ssues relatmg to seeds and plantmg
materlal . : o m T :
Implement plant varlety protectlon in Kenya administer plant breeders rlghts and malntam
the Plant Breeders' Rights Register; :

Undertake plant vanety testmg and descrlptlon seed certlﬁeatlon and plant quarantme
conttol; :

: Undertake mspectIon andgrading of plants and plant produce at the ports of entry and exit;

in consultat10n with other relevant agencies, dcvelop and implement standards for seed and
plant materials; . '
Implement and enforce natlonal b1osafety regulatrons on the mtroductron and use of

“genetically or living mod1ﬁed spec1es of plants 1nsects and mwroorgamsms, plant products

and other related species;
Regulate import and export of plants and plant materials; -
In consultatlon w1th other relevant agenc1es regulate: the commerc1a1 exp101tat10n of

- naturally oceurring plants and plant—related microorganisms;

m) Register and license seed merchants, sced growers, agents and any other person who may

n)

0)

be required to be. reglstered under the provisions of this Act or any of the laws specified in
the First Schedule; :

Enter into association with such other bodies or organmatlons or authorised persons as the
- Board may consider desirable or appropriate in furtherance of the purposes for which the
Service is established; =~ : : -

Be the liaison office for mternatlonai conventions relating to plant varlety protection, plant
protectlon seed certification and dealmg with endangered spec1es or any other related
“conventions,

iii
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(c) The KEPHIS Ma‘nagement Structure
The management structure of the Service consists of the following organs:

(d).. The Board of Directors
Board of Directors for the Service is responsible for the policy, control and management of the

Service. The Board consist of:
- a. A chairperson; - * . - o
'b. - The Prmcrpal Secretary to the Treasury ora des1gnated representatlve, }
c. _The Prmc1pal Secretary in the M1mstry respons1ble for agrlculture or a de31gnated
representatlve and >
d. Sevenother persons,
e. The managmg director is. secretary to the Board

' (e) The Ofﬁce of tlle Managmg Dlrector

The bearer of the Ofﬁce of the Managmg Dlrector of the Service is appomted by the Board. I—Ie/she
is responsrble to the Board for the day-to-day management of the affairs of the Serv1ce and is the
Secretary to'the Board and performs such other functlons as the Board may direct.

H Directorate of Phytbsanitary and Biosecurity

The D1rectorate is respon51ble for providing strategic leadershrp on plant health matters It ensures
:,mplernentanon of 1mport and export regulatlon pest identification & diagnostics, pest risk
analy51s pest surve1llance quarantme regulatlon Plant blosecunty, standard hannomzanon and
mternatlonal trade N : : S '

(4] Direc_torate of Seed C_ertiﬁcation & Plant Variety Protection
The Directorate is responsible for providing strategic leadership on quality inputs by ensuring that

the service achieves . 1ts mandate through enforcement of - plant breeders rlghts and seed
cert1ﬁcatlon

(h) Drrectorate of Plannmg and Strategy

'The D1rectorate is respons1ble for prov1dmg leadershlp on matters regulatory research projects
'development and 1mp1ementatlon strategic planning and- implementation; performance
contracting, : o - .

\
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()  Directorate of La:!ioratory Sérvices

' Thé__Diréctdrate"i"s responSIbIe for the .éfféctiveu:- inahagémen't of thé:"Aﬁalyti'dal' "'éhémiStry
_ Laborator_y and Food Safety, Plant Health and Molecular Laboratories and the Seed :Testin_g
Laboratories functions of the Service. - .0 e T Lo

(j)' ] Cdfpdratidﬂ S eci‘&ary a_hd L_égal Services Directorate

The office ‘is_-re'spo'r@SiBI'é" for suppor(:mg the Managin'g'bifécfdr to p_i"ol'videﬂl Board Secretariat and
related services to the Board as required under the KEPHIS Aét and Mwongozo; The Directorate
is also responsible for advising the Board and Management on legal matters, overseeing legal
matters as well as implementing good corporate governance to enhance'bf'gai;izat'iorial credibility.

(&) Internal Audit and Risk Directorate

The Directorate is responsible for reviewing and evaluating budgetary performance, financial
management, transparency and accountability mechanisms and ‘processes at the Corporation;
proyiding reasonable assurance through the audit c_orrilﬁit_t_ée on the state. of risk management,
control .and governance within. the Corporation; and reviewing the effectiveness of the financial

and non-financial performance management systems of the Corporation.
- -Diréctm-'ate of Corporate Services

The Directorate of Corporate Services is. responsible for providing 'stl"at_ag_ic leadership, -expert
advice and input to the Service to ensyre optimal utilization and management of the Service’s
resources. It will also provide accountability in the functional areas of Finance and Accounts,
Human Capital, Corporate Communications, Customer Care, ICT and Innovation, Security, and
Administration Departments, - . .- L : e et

(m) Supply:Chain Managem.énf'Dgpartment

The -s_npp.ly.'chéin Manégemen_t is anchored in the Constitution through Article 22_7 and amplified
by section 47 of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015, ‘The Division facilitates

KEPHIS to aéhigve its strategic goals through efficient and effective " planning and
procurement/disposal of goods and services. S
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YEAR PE'RFORMANCE' )

Durmg the FY 2021 2022 the Corporatlon undertook 3 various act1v1t1cs w1th1n 1ts mandate. These

-2022 Annual Work Plan and Performance Contract

1 PI-IYTOSAN ITARY SERVICES

a) Imports o ' ' '
During the period, KEPHIS undertook mspect1on of 1mport consngnments for comphance A total
of 84,428 Plant Import Permits (PIPs). were issued to. inspected and: complymg consignments at
various KEPHIS stations from July 2021 to June 2022 compared to 57,864 PIPs issued in the
previous ﬁnanmal year 'I‘h1s was due to an mcrease in nnports of cereals from nelghbourmg
countrles EIE R RERS  S : - : :

b) Exports L BT AR - ‘
KEPHIS facilitated exports durmg the per1od under review by mspectmg con51gnments of crops
plant products and regulated articles in accordance with international standards and Phytosanitary
requirements- of the- importing countries.: During the- 'year, a- total of 417,313 Phytosanitary
certificates were issued compared to 375,160 issued the year before. Thé increase was attributed

to- the-effects of COVID 19 recovery period-that led to an incréased exports of fresh produce

conSIgmnents and new: markets espec1ally for Avocado to China. - -

: c) Farm Audlts P R o
Durmg the period under review, a: total of 1 057 1nspect10ns were conducted mamly under the
routine mspectlons for.compliance with Phytosanitary requirements of USDA and EU regulations.
This was an’increase compared to 881 inspections last year: This was attributable to enhanced
audits for compliance with new. market requtrements due 1o the opemng up of Chma and other
export destmatlons - : IR

_ d) Pest Survelllance ' ' '
KEPHIS continued fo nnplement the early warning and raptd alert strategy for pests by carrying
out surveﬂlance for 26 emerging pests as compared to 10 in the previous period. ‘Enhanced
surveillance was ensured to curb new pest 1nctdences ‘and changing market requn'ements in
1mportmg countries. -

2 LABORATORY SERVICES

a) Plant Health Laboratorles ‘ v :
The KEPHIS Plant health laboratories conducted various tests durmg the per1od under review.
These tests were- either in supportmg comphance to import and export requirements or as a service
to the public. A total of 22,718 samples were tested in the Plant Quarantine and Blosecurlty station

at PQBS-Muguga Nakuru, Mombasa and Headquarters plant health.laboratories. This was

significantly higher than last year where 6,120 samples were tested. This growth was mainly due
o expanded accredlted methods and i mcreasmg demand for plant pest d1agnostlc services.
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- b) Analytical Chemistry Laboratory Services = - Coenes o
During the year under review the laboratory analysed a total number of 4,219 samples for both
customers and monitoring programs, This. was a 25.5% decrease from total number of 5,670
samples in the 2020 - 2021 financial year, For both enforcement and monitoring of Maximur
Residues Levéls (MRL) of pesticides, the laboratory analysed 2,182 for different commodities
from exit points,. supermarkets, farms and local markets. The samples inclided beans, peas, -
tormatoes, passion fruits, ‘capsicuin, Kales, avocado, grapes among others. 486 samples were
analysed for heavy metal contaminants and 485 for mycotoxiiis- analysis. 1,066 samples were
analysed for-other samples submitted by customers for soil fertility, fertilizer quality; and water
for irrigation suitability among other analytical services provided by the laboratory.

. c)».aGel;.mplﬁém:;Ex:c:llléﬁ:ge* :

KEPHIS fl.los,ts_ | tlssue cultureand : v;rus cl.éanilll_-g'.-; _.lab.brétoriéé to facilitate .:'r_ésearc_h_; : g’éhh-plasm
cleaning and exchange. During the year, germ-plasm for 3 crops that included cassava, Irish potato
and sweet potato were cleaned and exchanged with other countries, In addition, a total of 88,328

sweet potato vines were distribu

ted.
3. SEED CERTIFICATION .

) PlantBreeders’ Rights SRR L | AR
In the in the year 2021/2022,73 PBR applications were received as.compared to:57 in the previous
year. In addition, 361 grants were renewed. A majority of applications were for:Roses. ‘

b) National Perj‘qr.mance Trlals (NPTs) ' s c
During the reporting period, 274 varieties were under NPT Majority of thése (90%) were
“PHIS managed while 10% were:planted in trials managed by the clients: During the year, the

- NVRC approved for release of 67 new. varieties that had undergone through both NPT and DUS.

These varieties’ names were published in the Kenya Gazette and the seed companies are now at
liberty to commercialize and sell to farmers. o . : T

" ¢) Seed _tnspecti_on-' o :

Inthe peried under review 25,334 hectares of seed Cfops _iver_c‘ inspected und:ér r’;ﬁh.—féd and 7,872,7

hectares inspected under irri gated systems. There was marginal growth in itrigated seed crop due
to increases production by companies under-this system. .. _ SRR

d) _‘Se_ed Testing _ _ _ o - o
Seed sampled during processing were fested at Nakuru and Kitale seed testing laboratories to

determine the germination and purity capacities. During the period under review, the laboratories

‘tested 9,574 samples. The number samples tested increased from 6,051 in 2020/2021 signifying

an increase of 58%. This was mainly due to stringent measures put in place for testing of MLND
on all seed produced and imported into the country. . .- L UL : ‘
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e) Post Control Tests o - : .
Post control ‘tests ‘are quahty controi checks des1gned to determme ‘effectiveness. of field

_ mspectlons during cntreal active seed crop growth stages. In the period under view, 2,457 samples

were post controlled compared to 2,207 in the prevrous year.

f) Seed Post Certlficatlon Surveys and Llcensmg of Seed Stockrsts
During the seed post certification surveys carried out this financial year, seeds were sampled from
the stockists and tested. Most of the seed sampled and tested met the minimum quahty standards. -
A few that never met the standards were issued with stop sale orders and the companies concern
advised to withdraw them from the market. In the-same period 5,511 seed sellers were licensed to
sell certified seed in various KEPHIS régional offices. Thrs was a comparable to 5,516 seed seller’s
Ilcenses 1ssued in the 2020 2021 financial year. . . :

g) Seed Merchant Reglstratlon
Any person who wishes to produces, processes and or ma.rket certrﬁed seed is required by law to

‘apply to KEPHIS for registration as a seed merchant. In the period under rev1ew forty- elght (48)

new seed merchants were reglstered to undertake seed business.

4, Performance Contractlng T
KEPHIS supports the Ketiya govemrnent’s policy on Performance Contractmg and 1mplemented
the system as per the'18" cycle guidelines. In the 2021 - 2022 period the Corporatmn managed to
implement its Performance Contract and performed exemplarily well in' the set targets and
achieved a composne score of 2.6006 (Very Good) as compared to 2.8 last year. -

5. Key Management
The Corporation’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs: =
1. Board of_Directore
2. . Managing Director

3. Directors

(a) Frducrary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the ﬂnanc1a} year ended 30th June
2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:.

L fmtiecatseranhy ) 2

1. Managing Director i Prof, Theophllus M. Mutui
9 gg Corporation Secretary and Legal Services M Ivy Rose Waithera Bosco.

irector o
3. Ag. Internal Audit and R1sk Directorate Mr.Raphael Wanjohi Nderitu
4, Ag. Director of Corporate Services : | Mr. Bartonjo Cheptarus:
5. Ag. Deputy Director Finance & Accounts M. Ezekiel Mucheru
| 6. Director of Phytosanitary and Biosecurity Dr. Isaac Macharia
7 1];J)uec‘cor of Seed Certlﬁcatlon ‘& Plant Varrety Mr. Simeon Kibet Kogo
. rotection
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- 1.8} Deputy Diréctor of Plannmg atid. Strategy o Mr Nleholas Enoka Tunya

: 9 éegrv D:puty Dlrector of Analyncal Laboratory _ _.; er Mwangangl Kamut1
10| -Ag Supply Cham Management Department L Ms Irene Wambm Wangltm

(b) Flduclary Overs1ght Arrangements
' The Corporatlon has the folIowmg fiducnary overmght structures -

Non-executlve Chamnan of the Board SR -
Board of Directors comprising mdependent non-executlve dlrectors :
~Technical Commlttee : S
‘Finance Comm1ttee e T

: Human Resource and Admlmstrat]on Connmttee e

Audlt RISk & Governance Commlttee R

(© 'KEPHIS Headquarters .

jP 0 Box 49592 -00100
-Oloolua Ridge, Karen '
Nalrob1 KENYA

() KEPHIS Contacts |

| Telephone: - +254 02{)6618000/0709891000
E-mail: ' dlrector@kephls org -
Web51te WWW. kephls org :

(e) Corp'orat_ion Banker_s

1. Ketiya Cominercial Bank Ltd
P.O Box 7206 00100
NAIROBI

2. 'NCBABank -
P. O Box 30437 00100
NAIROBI

3. Natlonal Bank Of Kenya :
P.O. Box 72866 00200
- NAIOROBI o
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+ Nairobi, Kenya
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Hon. Peter Weru Kmyua Chalrperson

Current Chau‘person

Appointed 13ﬂ‘ July 2022
Hon. Peter Weru Kinyuna works as a consultant for
AMREF in acceleration. of health laws in parliament.
Previously he worked as a. Member of Parliament for
Mathira Constituency from: 2013 to 2017 and offered

~:-has played key roles in severai water pro_}ects in
B Mathira, Education sector, Youth. Empowerment and
- Mentorship Programmes, Commumty Development,
N Environment Conservation Imtlatlves etc. He has also
8 worked in the corporate world (Geosurv, Safaricom, and
Vodafone among others). Hon Peter Weru holds a
o " Bachelor Science in Surveying (1997- 2002) from
ertlﬁed Public Accountants part II. Moreover, he has attamed

Mr Robin Manono Achokl _Chalrman
Term ended 14“‘ May 2022.

i Mr Ach‘ok1 has over 20 years’ experience in public finance
- having served in the Ministry of Finance and Planning and the
*Ministry of Planning and National Development. In the
. Ministries he served as the Head of Economic Unit of
" Budgetary and Supply Department. He.has also served as a
- member of the Presidential Taskforce on the Coffee Subsector

Diréctor to the Permanent Secretary/Treasufy in the Board of
- Directors of National Council for Science and Technology and
--as Altérnate Director to the Permanent Secretary/Treasury in
- the Board of Director of Kenya Marine and Fisheries Research
'*Instltute Presently he serves as a member of the Kisii
ty Council. Mr. Achoki holds a post graduate diploma in integrated rural regional
nent plannmg from Development study ceitre, Rehovot, Israel, Bachelor of Philosophy

- in Economics from University of Nairobi and Bachelors of Arts, Honours in Economics from

Panjab University, India. He has also undertaken courses in Planning and budgeting among the_zm
Country focused Training in project planning and management for AICAD and JICA in Kyoto
University, Hitotsubashi University and other related institutions, Public Budgeting and Fiscal

xi

great support for the cornmumty and env:ronment He'

Reforms; as Secretary to the Panel of Experts on the Review of |
Performance Contracting in the Public Sector; as Alternate
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' _ﬁiaﬁagément in Georgia State University, Andrew Young School of Policy Studies, Atlanta, USA
and International Course for Budget Officer in Glasgow Caledonian University, Scotland. In

' add_iﬁqn; he attended a workshop-on Budgeting and Financial Management m the Public Sector in
" Harvard Institute for International Development. '

cophiliis M. Mutui (PH.D.) — Managing Director

- Appoinited on 11" December 2020 o :

Prof. Theophilus M. Mutui is the International Plant
“Protection Convention (IPPC) dﬁic_iiql‘qdnt_act- point for the
epiiblic of Kenya. He is also the Representative of Kenya
o the Council of the Intefr Protection
New Varieties of Plan i
xperience, having pi
josafety Authority - (NB
' Technical  Services. Heh Ids ;&
“Sciences from Leibniz University of
e did his post-doctorate studies at the - University of
‘Geotgia, the USA, and the United States Department of
-Agriculture (USDA) in Maryland under a fellowship from
the,l:nterna_’_tional' Atornic Encrgy Agency (TAEA). AtNBA,
- ' : - was involved in establishing networks and partnerships
| sector and development partners that were favourable to the

HDEDES R e

Lipian
Wit

w

]
-Mr;
ool

Hastriics

o Prqf._]:'l\_){qtg;_ wasfonnerly Country {qu’rdinato"r for’ Better Training :'._forr S'afgr' Food (BTSF)
b ) progran e for DG=SANI '(D_'f_‘fo"‘,f“t__:hg"Eump‘eari__Unic_)ni (EU) and a member of the National Food

S_éfcty’Céiﬁi_.‘_diﬂ ing Committee. He has many years of experience in research, consultancy and

teaching. He is 2 member in godd standing of many local and International professional societies

e such s theInternatlonalSoctety for Biosafety Research |(ISBR), Intetnational -Society of
%\ Horti_culmral'j';Scignbes}_(I_S_fHS) , Horticultural Association of Kenya (HAK) and amember of Kenya
DAAD Scholars Association (KDSA). Prof. Mutui has widely published in international refereed

journals and he is regularly invited as a guest speaker in international scientific conferences.

xii
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MrJullus Mutua f—_Al_tét"l_l‘"a‘.te' Director, Representative to the Cabinet Secretary, National
Treasury and Planning B '

Mr. Mutua is the Aiterhatq Director to Cabinet Secretary,

J Nat_ion_a__l Trea_sury.‘ Heisa seasoned civil servant with over 20
Years” experience in economic ; lati

Appointed 13% May, 2022
Mr, Killingo ‘was appointed as a KEPHIS Non-
Exécutive Director ' in ‘May 2022 and has 36yrs
experience in both public and Private sector, o
. He holds BA (Hons) from the University of Nairobj,
o Major.ingi"_l,l: Psychology and Sociology, He is currently
pursuing a Mz_i;'sférf's_Dégrée in Criminology, He works
for Kenya Airforce, - Technical Department, ~and
| Specializing  in Engineeririg  control and
| Instrumentation. o '
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Mr, James W_aﬂjbhi_ - Alternate Director, Representative to the Principal

Secretary State Department of Crops Development
Appomted 28“‘ January, 2022

M. Wanjohl is, the Altemate Duector to the Prmcxpal
" Secretary, State D_epart;ment for Crops Developmer_lt in
~ the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries.

- is.a quahﬁed tramer approved by the Internatlonal
inance Corporation as a Trainer of Tramers (2018). Dr
Maore has handled various assignments in the area of
trategic Planning, Marketing Planning, Branding
‘Strategy Development, Customer care, Customer
‘Service Charter = Development, Corporate
Communication and Market Research, among others. Dr
| Maore has been a lead assessor in the Company of the
Year Awards program (COYA) since 2010, focusing on
e_r Orientation and Marketi’ng and Corporate Citizenship ahd

In addition tor the formal'employment Dr Maore served as the Chan'man Board of Dlrectors at
" Meru County Investment and Development Corporation (MCIDC) from 2015 to 2018, and is

Xiv
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eurrently a Member Board of Dlrectors at Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Services (KEPHIS)

since 2020:and a member of the Techmcal Commlttee on Standards at Kenya Bureay of Standards
(KEBS), .. :

Academlcally, Dr Maore holds a PhD in Busmess Ad

a Masters in Busmess Admlnlstratlon (MBA.-
Bachelor of Educ’ io

mmlstratzon from the Umvers1ty of Na.lrobl
Marketmg) from the University of Nairobi and a
n in. Mathematlcs and Busmess Studies from Kenyatta Umversny ‘He has
of papers in the area of brandmg and marketmg w1th varlon ¢ putable refereed

e actlve member of the Marketmg Socrety of Kenya (MS ‘)_,
IM) and Ci "'ﬁed Instltute of Marketing (CIM). .

( helor of -Commerce
'rFmance ~option from the UoN He was appointed as a

KEPHIS Non- Executrve Director in May 2020 He comes

XV
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ell; Bahatl Kah ndl, Dlrector

L lepomted on 4‘1’ May, 2020
' Ms Bahatl “is a Masters_

._h ; lder m Busmess

;- fuk 1st10 -atranger '-and
elator strengths built over the years.
Previously She was appomted to sit in the Board of
# Kenya Industrial Estates as a Non —Executlve Director.
Marstella Bahatx isa commumty Ieader orgamzmg and -

Ms. Litole Jemtai

Utalii College till 2016 when she lgft to join the Konrad
Adenuor Foundation. She older of a Bachelor of
Business ™ Administration (Procurement . and Supply
Chain Management Optlon) and 1§ currently pursuing a
Master’s - Degree - - in Logistics - and = Procurement
Management and a Certified Secretaties certificate. She
also holds certificates in Food and Beverages, Business

! Management and Customer Servwe
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Mr._ Moses Atuko, Di éctor ‘

Re-appointed on 27th October 2021

‘Mr. Atuko is currently a consultant w1th Umted Natlons
Prev1ously, he worked: as County Executlve for. Health :
Services  ‘and Envrronment—Mrmng—-Energy, “both " for
‘Baringo County -Goverament;  Country - Director - for
'MENTOR Imtratwe, K_ rya;: egronal Manager for Kenya

oty Ce niry. Director for
Health Manager

- Health Moi Un1versrty, 200

& appomted on 27" October, 2021 _

Dr. N]eru holds a Doctorate deg;ree in Plant Sciences
| from - Murdoch University, Australia and a ‘Master’s
degree in Plant Pathology from The Unlversny of
Nairobi. Dr. Njeru, has a wide experience in the field of
plant heaith having served as a senior lecturer at the
Faculty of Agriculture, University of Nairobi forover 15
ars. She has also served as a Senior- Scientist with the
Ministry of Agr1culture in Rwanda under a World bank
funded Rural Sector Support Progr for.a per1od of
four 'years. During the subseque‘ ]
director inchargeof Capacity Building _nd-Technology
' Deployment with an International N n-Governmental
Orgamsatron Dr. Njeru has- pnbhshed Wldely in peer
“ reviewed journals, part1c1pated “Hn ‘International
conferences and? superv e PhD Students in the field of agronomy, plant breedmg, blotechnology
and plant health' in gener L w : _
Sheé has’ 1nternatrona1 experrence as an, educator ‘trainer, researcher in, proposal development and
capac1ty development with a focus on plant heaith, brotechnology 2 capamty building,
documentation, communication, science, technology and mnovatlon system Currently, Dr. Njeru
is an independent international consultant in the field of plant health vvrth an interest in plant heal__th
systems, compliance to international treaties especially the world Trade Orgamsatron Sanitary and
Phytosanitary Agreement. She has been a consultant with several organizations including; Food
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: and Agnculture Orgamzatlon of the United Nations, International Fund for Agnculture
Development, Technical Centre for Agricultural and Rural Cooperation, Regional Universities
Forum for Capacity Building in Agriculture, a consortium of over 33 Universities in Africa,
International Potato Centre and International Centre for Tropical Agriculture among others. She
serves the KEPHIS Board, as a member of the Technical Committee.

Xviii




Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service,
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30 2022

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Prof. Theophllus M '_._l;tul = M_ﬂhaging Director

Proﬁle on page: e

Ag -Corpﬁi‘ation’ -Secretafy & He’a'd Legal Affairs

- Ms. Mburu joined KEPHIS 1 in 2018 and holds a Bachelor

. of Laws LL.B (Hons.) from the Catholic University of

- Eastern Africa and a Post Graduate Diploma in Law from

“thé Kenya School of Law. She is also-an Advocate of the

* High: Court 6f Kenya, Comnnssmner of Oaths and a

Notary Public.

. Presently she is the Ag. Corporatlon Sécretary and oversees

:the Legal -Affairs Department which undertakes the

8 Contracts & Legal Instruments, Litigation & Disputes,
- Ethics, Integrity and ‘Anti-Corruption Issues and Legal

= Review of the Statues being 1mplemented by of the

'Organlsatlon

tosanitary and Biosecurity

" .-Dr.” Isaac Macharia;, the General Manager, Phytosanitary
L S_éﬁices holds a PhD in Plant Virology from the University of
“Neéw England in Australia and Masters of Science in Plant
- pathology from the University of Nairobi. He has worked with
- KEPHIS since 2002 where he has served in various capacities;
" Plant Inspector, head phytosanitary laboratories & Deputy
- Officer in Charge at Plant Quarantine Station and finally as the
Regwnal Manager - KEPHIS Mombasa. He has undergone
extensive phytosanitary training on Pest Risk- Analysis &
- Diagnosis from USDA APHIS and Ohio State University in
the USA. During the cause of his work he has spearheaded
diagnostic services, pest risk analysis, surveillance, import
- certification and development of phytosanitary policies. This
has led'to’s t growth Of the institution and has enabled the industry to access and retain
foreign markets. -+ 7 " ' ‘-
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Mr; _Simeon Kibet — Director of Seed Certiﬁeation & Plant Variety Protection

- Mr Klbet joined KEPHIS in October 2000 He has held various
senior positions which include; Liaison Officer for Quality
Assurance Division, Reglonal Manager Nakuru and Head Seed

Certification & Plant Variety Protection, General Manager-'

Quahty Assurance and served as the Ag Managmg Dlrector

untll December 2020 S

Mr. Klbet holds an MPhll degree in Crop production and Seed
Technology from Moi- University, and a BSC in Agnculture
from The University of Nairobi. He has extensive experience in
seed quahty assurance and has been tramed in Seed Technology
in J Japan, Netherlands and South Afrlca '

Mr.__Ba‘r_tonjo;Ch'. Ptﬂ?‘?s*: Ag. Director of Corporat_e'Services
- As from 18 Mareh 2020

" Mr. Bartonjo joined KEPHIS in the year 2002, and has
served in the capacities of Head of Finance and Head of
* Audit.” He -holds -a -Bachelor’s Degree 'in Commerce

. (Finance, Optlon) from the University of Nairobi.

B 'He isa Certiﬁed Pubhc Accountant and isa member of the
' _Instltute of Certlﬁed Pubhc Accountants, Kenya (ICPAK)
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: CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
1 take this opportunity to present to you the Corporation’s f'mancial report for the period 2021/2022.
_ pandem1c “The Corporatlon successfully navigated through the challenges .‘o the' pandemlc by

-1mplementmg Govemment Gurdehnes and other strategles that have ensured sa 'sfactory results
are. achleved . ' L '

} agr1cu1tural "produce ‘Oni notable new market is Chlnese rnarket for avocado which has shown
: .great prospects in terms of growth in export volumes.

‘revenue ﬁ'om KShs. 1.182 Billion in 2020/2021 to KShs. 1.1258 Billion in 2021/2022. This growth
“key development partners’ support were mainly: COMESA (RIIP Pro_]e

: KEPHIS plays-

Durmg the period, KEPHIS implemented its mandate despite the challenges of Covid-19

In' terms of ﬁnano1al sustamabrhty, the - corporatlon ‘achieved growth in mternally generated

was mamly due to increased fresh produce exports to traditional and new: markets. External @
funding from' GOK and Development Pariners decreased from KShs. 86:Million to KShs 44.4 _k
Million. This was attributed to the completion of the USAID FOOSCAP ing t_h_e_perlod

A: Gerorally,
uer as well as
¢ mobilization

funding is ‘still: mad uate ‘hence the need for sustamed support from
Development Partne KEPHIS will endeavor in strengthenmg its mtern
strategles as wel § efsuring prudent ﬂnanc1al management of its res
: portant role in supportmg the growth of Kenya

of developmg its next Strateg1c Plan for the perlod 2022/2023-2026/2027 The new plan will gulde
the . organlzatlon in’ its vision of Excellence in Plant health and Quallty Assurance in |
Agrlculture with key result areas focusing on Plant health Seed quality, Plant variety protection, : i
Trade facilitation and institutional capacity. - -

The Board of Directors is committed to the 1mplementat10n and realization of the asplratwns of _ : !
this St_rategt_c Plan through provision of policy support, enabling environment, and empowerment.. e
The Corporation will continue to sustain existing linkages with all the National and County A
governments through relevant Government Ministries, Departments and Agencies as well as other
stakeholders to ensure coherence and enhance synergies in delivery of its mandate.

x
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In cOnclusibh, I wish to acknowledge and appreciate the Government, stakeholders, the Board of
Directors, Management and Staff their contribution to the successes of KEPHIS during the year
under review. KEPHIS looks forward to a more vibrant 2022/2023 financial year with better
prospects. '

Hon, Peter Wérli Kinyua.
Chairman, Board of Directors o
Kenya: Plant Health Inspectorate Service
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFlCER_

Overview: B
KEPHIS operates aré within the conifines of the KEPHIS Act 2012, the Seeds and Plant Variéties
~ Act CAP 326 and the Plant Protection Act CAP 324. Kenya is also s1gnatory to various
mternatmnal conventions, agreements, and treaties which KEPHIS unplements These mclude_
Common Market for Eastern and Southern Africa (COMESA) and East Afr1can Community.
(EAC), OECD Fruit and Vegetables Schemes, OECD Seed Schemes and OECD Forest Seed and.
Plant Scheme, the Internatmnal Union for the Protectlon of new Varlet1es of Plant (UPOV)
CODEX Alimentarius Commission, the World Trade Orgamzation-Samtary and Phytosamtary
Agreement (WTO-SPS) the Intematmnal Plant Proteet1on Convention (IPPC) among others

It is my pleasure therefore, to present to you the KEPHIS Financial statemerits for the period June .
2021 to July 2022. This is mdeed a great moment and milestone for the Corporat1on which
coincidently marks twent_y ﬁve years of her existence. The. per1od also marked the post covid-19
-pandemic recovery period; and the Corporation was able to implement plans and strategies to
ensure continuity and provision of regulatory service despite the attendant challenges.

During the period under review, the Corporation made notable achievements including the review
of legal framework, enhanced ICT infrastructure, and expanded use of technology. The latter
included integration of export and import certification systems, integration of the ECS with IPPC
e-phyto hub, procurement of the of Enterptise Resource Planning (ERP) system and launch of the
Seed Certification and Plant Variety System. KEPHIS also maintained and- expanded scope of
accreditatmn of laboratories, certification to Quality Management Systems (QMS), Information
Security Management Systems (ISMS). In addition, - KEPHIS successfully reviewed and
implemented its Human resource instruments and internal pol1c1es to comply with relevant
legislation and best practices. i -

Most importantly, the Corporation ensured compliance with market requirements enabling the
country to maintain and open new markets. In addition, service delivery was expanded by opening
new offices i.e., Lamu port and Shimoni. In support of ease of doing business policy the
Corporation operated 24-hour system in select border points, integi'ate_d to the Kentrade KNSW
trade faci_litatien system, operationalized the One Stop Border Post, and build capacity of staff and
clients. The Corporation participated in standard seting and harmonization activities to support
market access and represent the interests of Kenya in regional and international forums. :

Stakeholder Engagement .
KEPHIS continued to enhance its stakeholder alliances and partnersh1ps through collaboratxon and

cooperation with partners. During the year, the Corporation hosted the Phytosanitary Conference,
Published the African Phytosanitary journal and undertook training of 509 Phytosanitary
practitioners from the country, the region and the world through the Centre of Phytosanitary
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actorate Service,

aspects within its mandate; KEPHIS also undertook sustamabﬂlty programs
, and persons Wlth dlsabllrtres

gencies on the managlng of these- pests and drseases The Corporation also undertook
illance’ and inonitoring to’ determine the spread and -impact of the pests. In terms of
igthenirg regulation in Plant Health, during the p‘eriod;. KEPHIS completed the review of the
otection Act CAP 324, and development of the National Phytosanitary policy. The two
~instruments are at 'an ‘advanced stage-of development and will be launched in the next planning
-period. Implementatlon of the Act, regulations and: the policy are intended to further strengthen
“ regulatory work in the agricultural sector and more “importantly enhance productwrty in the
hortlcultural sector whrch isa ma_ror contrlbutor to Kenya s economy

KEPHIS mtends to contmue workmg wrth partners and other agencres in developlng robust Early
Warmng and Emergency ‘Response Systems -for - plant pests ‘to enhance early detectron ‘and
management. The Corporation shall also strengthen its research unit for regulatory decision
makmg, enhance border control and surverllanee in- order to. proteet Kenya’s agriculture. -

Seed Certrficatlon and Plant Varlety Protectlon _ -

KEPHIS undertook regulatory work in" the seed sector mcludmg testmg, release for
commercrahzatlon of new varieties of plants and enhanced capacrty for variety testmg Durmg the
perlod 67 varretles were recommended for release and approved by the National Performance
Trials Committee- (NPTC) and the National Varlety Release Committee (NVRC) respectlvely :
Varletles released in the year included Rangeland and. pasture forage erops such as Rhodes grass,

Industrial crops that included Sunflower, Canola and Sorghum and other food crops that included
Malze Potato Rice and pulses -

R SN

N KEPHIS also faelhtated activities to increase farmer awareness on rdentrﬁcatlon and benefits of
l using certified séed ‘of superior varieties, authorized private persons to undertake specified seed
certification services as determined by KEPHIS and maintained membership and participation in
regional and intern'ational orga_nizations. The corporation also facilitated availability of clean
vegetative planting material to farmers through the disiribution of over 66,387 Orange fleshed
sweet potato vines. This was made possible at the Plant Quarantine and Biosafety station in
Muguga.

ey
L .

Trade Facilitation
Trade facilitation remained a key dellverable for KEPHIS. During the year the Corporatlon_
participated in regional and international standard setting, and harmonization activities to facilitate

i S G
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' complrance to set standards for trade Trade negotlatlon activities mcluded bi- lateral rnultr-Iate

this. opportumty to sincerely thank the KEPHIS Board, management, staff and stakeholders for the

Prof. Theophilus M. Mutui, PHD

Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service,
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 '

-arrangements w1th our tradlng partners To faclhtate trade, the corporatron undertook i ins
of plant matenal for export and import cons1gnments at all official entry and exit points. KEP '
issued a total of 417 313 Phytosamtary certiﬁcates and 84,428 Plant Import Perrmts (PIPs) fo
complymg conmgnments

Agrlcultural inputs. and produce testlng laboratones. : g : N
KEPHIS assured the. quahty of various agro-inputs such as seed, fertlllzers water for Irrlgatlon
soil and. peStICIdC formulatlons This was made possrble through established KEPHIS. accredlted_-
service laboratories  at Karen- (Headquarters), Muguga, Nakuru and Kitale. Maintenance of
accredltatlon of the laboratones to 1SQ.17025. was- achieved: durmg the period for the Analytical
Chemlstry Laboratory at Headquarters Plant Health Laboratory at KEPHIS Muguga and the Seed . -
testing laboratory in Nakuru Going: forward KEPHIS intends to- enhance laboratory. serv1ces o
through expansmn of tcstlng scopes; accredltatlon of new rnethods and acqulrmg of modern
analytlcaI and dragnostlc laboratory equlpment : : ; Lo AR

Instltutlonal capacrty oo : ' :

During the period, the Corporatron enhanced the capacrty of its staff and elrents for 1mproved
service dehvery and compliaiice fo regulatory requtrements KEPHIS focused on building capac:lty
for farmers SMEs" and players in the rational and County governmenis as a way of ensuring
compliance to set standards for market access and etthance product1v1ty ‘A total of 1,481 targeted
stakeholders were trained duringthé period. These included The Corporatlon also’ mvested on staff
skill development to meet the necessary competencles requ1red for the sector, All staff were taken
through various training and. skill development programs 1 to, enhance the1r capablhtles KEPHIS :
also upgraded its ICT. systems through acqulrlng ICT mﬁ‘astructure and automatlon of key
operat10nal processes In order to enhance ease of domg busmess the Corporatlon 1ntegrated its
ECS/ICS system to the KENTRADE KNSWS ThlS is expected to reduce lag i in the export and
1mport documentatron process KEPI—IIS w1ll contmue 10 mvest further 111 1ts ‘staff as well as
1nfrastructural fac111t1es to ensure achtevement of 1ts mandate '

In 'conclusibn KEPHIS i‘s conﬁdent that with the support of all stakeholders and partners, we shali
attain our new vision of “Excellence in Plant health and quality assurance in agrlculture” 1 take

achievement of set milestones during the penod under review.

rs—

Managing Director
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PERFORMANCE AGAms'T PREbETERMINED OBJECTIVES FY2021/22
H Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Serv1ce (KEPHIS) has elght (&) strateg1c themes and obj ectives.
’l- within. the current Strategm Plan for the FY 2017/ 18- 2021/22 These strateg1c themes are as
47 follows: ‘ ..
i ) Theme 1: Protection of Plant Resources
) ' Theme 2: Legal and Regulatory Framework
_ Theme 3 Agrlcultural productmty '
Theme 4 Trade facllltatlon
_ Theme 5t Capaclty bmldmg _ AR
: Theme 6: Resource moblltzatlon aud management

Theme 7: Stakeholder alhances and partnershlps '

_There 8 Corporate brand 1mage

”‘ KEPHIS develops its annual work plans based onthc above 8 Theme's. Assessment of the Board’s
";-" performance _against its annual work plan is done on a"quarterly basis. The corporation also
T developed its 2021/2022 Performance Contract from its Annual Work plan' and implemented it as
et per the 18™ Cycle Pcrformance Conu'act gu1de11nes KEPH]S achleved its all its performance
1 targets set for the FY 2021-2022 perlod for its 8 strateglc themes, as’ 1nd1cated by some key
; SN 1ndlcators in the table below ' o
e i
b
I
L 1. Protectmn of ' To protect Number of 'Undertake analys1s at the ; 22,718
1 Plant Resour_ces_ plants from . |.samples : plant health laboratones | samples
L o pests, weeds | analyzed o
| ' ' and invasive
1 species
Number of Inspection of import 84,428 Plant
i consignments | consignments at ports of | Import

1 and Plant entry | Permits
E : - Import Permits (PIPs)
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.| Number of pest | Pest surveillancés 26 ;
surveillances . | conducted using surveillance
surveillance , s '
_ ‘ t,echnolggie._s and tools
2. Legal and To establish = | Phytosanitary - _-Development ofthe.-... | Phytosanitar
Regulatory arobust, ° Draft policy | Natmnal Phytosamtary -y draft
Framework facilitative S ' | completed
policy, legal : S N P
and.. | Plant .Development of plant . | Draft -
regulatory Protection draft | protect:on regulatlons ‘| Regislations
| framework - | regulations PERIH IR : completed
'for KEPI—IIS L
3, Agricultural To contrlbute Number of Administer Plant 173 Granis
productivity towards | Title grants Breeders Rights _ '
lmpro‘_’e-d 1 Number of Conduct national - 274
levels of candidates performance trials A
agrlcu]tural tested e
product1v1ty _
while Number of Facilitaté release of new | 53
responding to varieties varieties including
climate gazetted gazettement
change .- o
Hectares Undertake seed field | 25333.97 =
inspected 1nspcct10ns Rain-fed
- 7872.72 -
1o o o Irrigated -
'Number of . [ Undertake seed 9,574 -
seed samples sampling, testing samples
taken and ' : o
tested S
Number of Undertake pre and post | 2,457
_post control control testing samples
samples
Number of License seed sellers, 5,511 seed
| seed sellers SMEs sellers
licensed, SMEs o
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Number of Register seed merchants, | 48 Seed
néw seed - ‘SMEs - - L Merchants
merchant, S
4, Trade To Support - | Number of Undertake gradingand | 417,313
facilitation Food safety, |Phytosanitary | inspection of export Phytosanitar -
Market certificates - . | produce v :
Access and issued S Certificates
Compliance -
' Number of Undertake farm . 1,057 audits
audits/inspecti | audits/inspections for
ons | compliance to SPS and
-market requirements
(USDA, EU, Israel -
interception/rejection
follow-ups, new client
farm audits and food
safety audits)
Number of Undertake analysis of 3,321
samiples agricultural produce for | samples
‘analysed contantinarits o
5. Capacity To build Number of - | Undertake training and | 512
building staff, =~ [ staff trained development staff
' stakeholders |~ R
; and | Number of Undertake Youth. 299
infrastructura | interng/student | Internships/Industrial
: Leapacity to | ¢ attachments/Apprentices
| facilitate hips ' o
o efficient and -
bt
y
{.J A
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1effective -

| ERP system. 1n

AImplement an integrated |

full

mobilized funs .

| delivery of | place _back office (Finance,
the KEPHIS HR, Audit, planning)
mandate. ERP system for effective
administration, support
-for the organization
_ Integtated Implement an Integrated System in
"ECS/ICS Import/Export place
system Certification System -
| Implementatio | Roll-out the Plant System in
nofSeed | variety protection and place
 Certification & | seed certification system | -
| Plant Variety '
system -
Number of 'Operationalization of 2 offices
‘new offices Lamu and Shimoni Port
‘opened and ' Ofﬁces
: operatlonahsed E :
Nurnber of “Enhance stakeholder 509
pr_actltloners - -capacxty through COPE practitioners
trained trammg
6. Resource To mobilize | Percentage of Absorpt1on of Allocated 100%
mobilization and | adequate utilisation of | F unds(GoK) '
management { financial funds -
resources and ‘Revenue A-in-A 1.2Bn
ensure collected
optimal :
allocation Percentage Absorption of Externally | 100%
and utilisation of | Mobilized Funds
utilization for | externally '
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“implementati, | Ratio of .| Management of pending
onof = - |PendingBills |Bills o
-programmes - | to total budget
: o and acfivities |~ . = .. . - -
7. Stakeholder | To enhance | Customer Conduct customer 76 CSI
alliances and | synergies. ‘satisfaction satisfaction surveys to '
partnerships | through . . | index gauge customer service :
- - | collaboration " levels for the '
and linkages _ Corporation
stakeholders | CAJ Score Undertake resolution of | 96%
and partners ‘| - customer complaints - |-
8. Corporate To enhance | Number of Undertake corporate 4
brand image the visibility | Corporate | 'social sustainability '
' -and corporate | Social activities '
‘image of Sustainability |
KEPHIS. -activities
Number of Participate in field days, | 68
field days, shows, trade fairs, media
shows, media | interactions, farmers
interactions - | forums
and farmer
forums
XXX




Name o Posntlon
'Mr. Robin Achoki " Chairman (1* Term expired effective on 14% May, 2022)
Prof. Theophilus M. Mutui Ma'naging Director (Effective 11" December, 2020)

Corporatlons (Effective 9" June, 2022) 3&

Ms. Lucky Litole ~ Independent Board Member w
Mr. Moses Atuko ‘Independent Board Member %\
Dr. Rose Njeru Independent Board Member uz

~ Mr. John Angaine Independent Board Member (up to 2’"d May, 2022) g
Xxxi
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CORPORATE GOVERNAN CE STATEMENT

The: KEPHIS Act No 54 of 2012 Laws of Kenya in Sectlon 8 prov1des that the Boar
compnse of a Chalrman seven (7) 1ndependent non-executlve members appomted from ar
per_son_s experieneed m ag'ricuitur'e:, hort_iculture, seed and administration'j the following statuto
members the Prmclpal Secretaries to the Natmnal Treasury and. Plannmg, the Mmrstxy 0
Agrlculture Livestock, F1sher1es and Co-operattves, and ‘the Managlng Drrector who 1s th_
Secretary to the Board. The Board brmgs together Members from different professmnal
backgrounds with diverse skllls, competenc1es and strives to comply w1th the constitutional gender

baIance requlrements

Durmg the 2021/2022 ﬁnanc1a1 year, eomposmon of the Board was as follows

Mr. Julius Mutua Alternate Dlrector to the Cabmet Secretary, National
N Treasuty and PIanmng
Mr. David Mwangi Alternate D1rector to the Pr1nc1pa1 Sectetary, State.
.' -Department for Crop Development and Agrlcultural
_ Research (up to 30™ December, 2021)
Mr. James Wanjohi _ _Alternate Dlrector to the Pr1n01pa1 Secretary, State
' Department - for Crop Development and Agrlcultural-
Research (Effective 10" January, 2022)

Mr. George Ombua  Altemate to -the Inspector General, Inspectorate of State - »-

Corporations (up to 8% June, 2022) -
Mr. Chrisologus Makokha ~ Alternate to the Inspector General Inspectorate of State A

G T
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Ms. Marstella Bahati Kahindi Independent Board Member

- Dr. S'te'phen Kirimi Maore Indepe'ndent Board Member
‘Mr. Ronald Juxton Abonyo B - .-Independent Board Member
- Mr. Silas Klllmgo . Independent Board Member (Effeetlve 13 May, 2022)
| Board Meetlngs |

" The Board ‘meets on a quarterly ba31s to review management performance operatlonal 1ssues and

future plannmg The Directors are given approprlate ‘and timely 1nformat10n to enable thern

maintain full and effectwe control over strategic, fman01al operattonal and eomphance 1ssues All

the Dlreetors are lndependent of Management and free from any busmess relationship that could

materrally mterfere with the exerc1se of the mdependent Judgement The Board held e1ght (8)

meetlngs durmg the perlod under review. '

Board Commlttees

Pursuant to sectlon 11 (2) of the Act the followmg Comrmttees were in place during the ﬁnanclal

year:
1.

2.

3,
4

Techmcal Comrmttee
F1nance Commlttee
Human Resouree and Adrnmlstratlon Comnnttee

Audit, R13k and ‘Governance Commrttee

The Commlttees were formed SO as to assist the Board to effectlvely and efﬂmently carry out lts

functions under weil-deﬁned tenns of reference set by the Board.

'Durmg the 2021/2022 financ1a1 year, Comm1ttee meetlngs held Twenty (20) meetmgs as follows
5. Technlcal Comm1ttee Four (4) No.
6.
7
8

Finance Committee — Six (6) No
Human Resouree ‘and Administration Comrmttee Four (4) No.

Audit, Rts_k & Govemance Comr_mttee Six (6) No.

Attendance to those Board and Committee meetings by members was as follows:
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Notes o o ‘- : -
¢ Mr. Robin Achokl Term as Chairman expired effective on 14" May, 2022.
Mr. John Angaine - Term explred effective on 14" May, 2022. ' .
- » Mr. James Wanjohi - Appointed as the Alternate Director to the Prmmpal ‘Secretary, State
- .Department for Crop Development and Agr1cultura1 Research effectwe 10%] anuary, 2022 He
was appomted to replaced Mr.David Mwangi. -
o Mr. Moses Atuko, Ms. Lucky L1tole and Dr. Rose Njeru were re—appomted to the Board in
" October;2021. o '
e Mr Chr1sologus Makokha Appomted as the Altemate o the Inspector General, Inspectorate
of State’ Corporat1ons effectwe 9th June 2022 He was appomted to. replaced Mr., George
Ombua. ~ '
e Ms. Cecelia Mbothu and Mr. Simon Indimuli are State Corporat1ons Advrsory Committee
~officials who attended the Board self-evaluatron w1th1n the year..
. Other Engagements Meetings include trainings, tours and retreats.

o Successmn Planmng : .
~ Appointment of Board. members as prov1ded for under the Act has been staggered in such away
that there is retention, cont1nu1ty and transfer of mstrtutronal memory

Exrstence ofa Board Charter . : :
_There exists a Board Charter that sets out the mandate of the Board and the. respectlve roles of the
Chanperson and members as well as provisions on orientation, trammg, and board evaluatron

Inductlon and tramrng C :
Board membeis undergo regular trannng and educatlon to enable them fulﬁl their respons1b111t1es
All board members receive -an . induction upon joining. This ‘provides an ‘overview of the
organization, new developments i the environment in which the organization operates, accounting
and ﬁnancral reportmg developments and policies, ‘as well as any regulatory and compliance
changes : R o :

Declaratron of Interest ' R :
: Confhct of Interest is a standing agenda 1tem in all Board and Commiitee Meetlngs A reg1ster is
also mamtamed and duly ﬁlled dur1ng all the Board and Commlttee meetings.

‘Board Remuneratron_ ' - ' ' : :
Currently govemed undet the 2004 Guidelines on Terms and CO]'Idlthl’lS of Service for State
Corporations”; .Chief Execntrve Ofﬁcer Chairmen and Board Members, Managernent and

Unionisable Staff

Governance Audlt

The Board has embarked on building in-house capacity in readiness for the 1% Governance Audits
during the 2022/2023 financial year upon accreditation of Governance Audrtors by the State
Corporatrons Adv1sory Commrttee

Board Evaluatlon Results for FY2021/2022 conducted hy State Corporatlons Advisory
Commlttee (SCAC)
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| The Code of Governance for State Corporatrons (Mwongozo) requires boards of state corpora
to undertake an annual evaluation of its performance, The table below shows the results of
; board evaluatlon as conducted by the State Corporanons Advrsory Comnnttee (SCAC)

te 'of the Corporanon appropnately 48571 97.14

Pt The mandate of the Corp

orahon i relevant W the nat1onal socro- ~[5.0000 - | 100 -
,econormc development : e o ,

: 3 The Board has artlcu_lated or revrewed the des1red future state (v1510n) 48571 g 97.14
11 of the corporatlon ' R . S '

| 4 The Board has rev1ewed the mandate of the 'Corporation to match: RS 19429
E changes 1ntheenv1ronment TN SE D
— T Rang Mean Score ' T |assL | 9714
7- -'Strategy
1 T The Board hes artlculated the strategic use of financial resources o 50000 — 100
';,3_obta1n maxrmumvalue - B ' '
3 2The strateglc plan is 1ntegrated w1ththe .Kenya'\_fision 2030. o : 50000 .1(__)._0. .
- 3 i he Board has 1dent1ﬁed the Corporation $ Key Performance _ T 5.0000 100

Indrcators for the plan perrod

4 Board has & mechamsm for monrtormg and evaluatmg performance 13 0000 ol 100
against | the Key Performance Tndicators. : :

5 The level of strateglc plannmg is of sufficient quahty and content. ' 45714 91 43
_. 6 | The strategic plan is reﬂected at an operat1onal level in  the busmess 4857 1 . 97.14
* | plan. : ‘ : ' '

7.. | The Board has developed a strategy for. prov1d1ng resources requlred 47143 94.29
o] for 1mp1ementat1on of the strategy. . . AR B .

RangeMean Score '_ e '_ - . : 48776 97.55
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4.8571

47857 | 95.71

rt Tw0' Functlons of the Board

he'Board understands, agrees deﬁnes and dlssemmates 1ts functlons '4..85'71 - 197.14
|'onan annual bas1s. S :

1 fThe Board knows and understands the Corporatton 5 bellefs values 570000 -| 100
?phllosophy, ‘mission and vision and reflects th1s understandmg on key ' |
:-lssues throughout the year. S ¥

13 .Such behefs values,, ph11050phy, mission and v131on are set and are 4.8571. | 197.14
: 'consmtent w1th Corporanon s status ' '

4" The Board devotes 51gn1ﬁoant tlme and serious thought to the - 48571 | 97.14
_Corporation’s Iong-term objeetlves and to the strategtc opt1ons '
‘| available'to achieve them.:. o : S ‘ .
5 | The Board has defined and commumoated to management the scope - | 4.8571 | 97.14 -
-~ -|'and.powers, roles and responsibilities to be adhered to by rnanagement ' ' '
- '.to meet routine: and exceptlonal cu'cumstances

6 The ma;onty of the Board s tune is not spent on issues of day-to-day 45714 191.43
| management, .- : - ' S
7 - | The Board is involved in formulatmg long-range strategy from the 4.8571 97.14
_begmnmg of the plannmg oycle '

8 The Board ensures that the organization has sufﬁuent and approprlate 47143 | 94.29
. ‘resources to aohleve its strategle goals :

L, 9 Proposals from management are analyzed and debated vigorously | 4.857 1 .97.14
| _ before being approved by the Board. A proposal that is conmdered ' '
- ' _ | inappropriate is declined. . : _
' 10 | The Board has an operatmg plan that spec1ﬁes 1ts functlons act1v1t1es 5.0000 {100
?fj“ | and ob]ectwes : :
I
% A
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[ ed's'in'tennS'ot"ski'IIS' and'ha's'the'so ‘
~ | skills. :
12 | Whei, approprrate the Board seeks counsel ﬁ'om professronals o
| advisors’ . : .
13 .| The Chief Executlve Officer 5 remunerat1on and performance is 5.'0_00_0 b
| Reviewed and determmed by the loard based on performance T
evaluation. - : : : : i
14| The Board: determlnes annually, the objectrves and measurement | 4.8571"
- cr1ter1a for the Chlef Executlve Officer. . o S
{15} A broad range of approprrate performance 1ndlcators are used to 4.8571
* | monitor the performancc of management Reliability is not. placed
o solely on the ﬁnancral statements prov1ded by management.: ©oe
16 | The perforrnance of _the Chlef Executwe Ofﬁcer is revrewed formally 14.8571
' -on an annual basrs ' L
77 | The Board has 1dent1ﬁed the groups to wh1ch 1t is: (a) Accountable 5.0000
)] Resp0n31ble L _ R
18 | The Board understands and agrees that its first duty isto the 48571
 Corporation - :
19 | Board actrvrtles are conducted in an atmosphere of creatxve tensmn 48571
20 | The Board allo‘Ws 'diversity__. of op_inion' in_jts meetings. 4.8571
21 | The Board has procedures in place to ensure that the orgamzatlon is - | 4.8571
' rneetmg 1ts legal respon31b111t1es ‘ : S
22 | Formal review of the Board’s performance has become an 1ntegra1 - ,4.85'_}-'1 ‘
-part of the culture of the Board |
B The Board ensures that key members of management are brought mto _ 50000 -
the Board meetings so that they: can participate and add value to their o
deliberations and work on. behalf of the Board. o
24 | Board members evaluate their individual and overall Board 5.0000
- pperformance formally on an, annual basrs o U
25 | The Board ensures all confhcts of 1nterest are: (a) Declared ' 5.0000
.(b) Resolved L N
26 | Every Board member has’ been supphed w1th a letter of appomtment 5.0000
27 | The letter of appomtment deﬁnes the roles. and functrons of the Board - 1.5.0000
and the speclﬁc role of each d1rector - ‘ :
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- Range Mean Score -

|4.85m

Part Three: Boa"rd Meeting Management and Proc_e_duires

]
&
g

[P

1 Every Board member has been supplied with a Board manual and a 4.7143 194.29
-copy of standing orders and regulatlons governmg conduct of Board

meetings.. . _

2 Every Board member was supphed with a calendar of meetmgs -1.5.0000 100
showing dates of Board: meetings, cornmu:tee meetmgs and key or
ctitical events of the Corporation, : o P

3 | Boatd nieetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open -4.8571  07.14
commumcatzon meamngful partlmpatlon, and tnnely resolution of

.. | issugs. - o o

4 | Sufficient tlme is prov1ded durmg Board meetmgs for thoughtful 4.8571 97.14
dlscussmn in addltlon to management dlalogue : ' :

5 Board time is used effectively S0 that the Board adds value to 4.8571 97.14
management. -

"6 | Formal meetmg and reporting. procedures have been adopted by the 5.0000 100

Board.: . o

7 | Board members receive tlmely and accurate rnmutes advance written | 4.7143 94.29

iagendas and meetlng notices; and clear and « concise background ‘

materlai to prepare in advance of meetlngs ' :

8 Al Board members are fully mformed of reIevant matters and there 5.0000 100
are never any surprises. ' -

9 'Absenteersm from Board meetings is the exception rather than the- 5.0000 100

| rule. -
10. [ Board meetings are facﬂ1tated ‘but not overtly influenced by the 4.8571 97.14
Chalrperson.

11 Al Board members are penmtted to add items to the meeting agenda. 5.0000 100

12 | All proceedlngs and Resolutions of the Board are recorded accurately, | 4.8571 97.14
adequately and on a timely basis.
Range Mean_ Score 4.8929 97.86

]
L
L

Part Four: Board’s Compos:tlon, Induction, Trammg,
Development, and Succession

i mamn
it

i
oL
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| current Board members. -

process considers any deficiencies in the skills of

1:4:5000.

| The composition of the Board fairly :represents the diversity of
_| stakeholders, o ) i

4.4286

'New Board members are introduced to their duties with an appropriate |
! _inducti_on?_prpcess'_-.- : . o

5.0000

| management and the separation of stewardship and management, E

Board méniBers understand the extent of their rélhtions‘hi’p with ot

‘Encouragement is given for Board members to continue their study of

corporate governance and improve the skills they need.

47143

affairs of the Corporation.

Directors understand the extont of their pérsbnalz iiability for the

48571

A succession plan is in place for the Chief Executive Ofﬁ_cer, Board -
members and senior management and is teviewed regularly.

4.4286

18857

- Directors who have not been contributing to the governance of the

organization, and are un_in_t_e\restedlin_imprgyin_g their performance are
asked to resign. S L S _ .

4.6000

92.00

- question such director is asked to resign pending investigations. -

Where the ethical or professional conduct of any director-is called into-

4.4000

"88.00

10

- Board members bind themselves to tiphold honour and respect to the.
-code of Ethics of the Corporation on first a
- Wwhere their actions are called into question. .

ppointment and toresign .|

48571

97.14

Rangé_Mean Score

4.6643

9329

Parf Five: Board Structure -

Directors.. :

The' Board has a balanced mix of Independent Non-Executive - -

48333

96.67

| The roles of 'Chairperso_n of the 'Board' and Chief Executive Officer are
_separated and held by different persons.- ' .

4.8571

97.14

XXXix

g
E

i
:
=



5.0000

"4.9226

98.45

form_'at_ion and -._Comrn_u_n'icat,ion-‘ .
er Board member was supphed with all estabhshment 1nstrument ' 4_.7143 94.29
legal documents, mission statement, vision and strategy documents :
of the organization on first appomtment '
‘ Every Board member receives a’c py.of the Board manual together 4.7143 94.29
1'with a letter of appomtment oft ﬁrst appointment, .
Every Board member received copies of all policy documj‘" s 4.5714 91.43
45714 | 9143

Chief Exeeutrve Ofﬁeer- _ :

The Board receives sufficient information frorn management inan 4.8571 97.14
appropriate format as determmed by the Board

- The Board’s information requlrements are commumcated to 5.0000 100
management on a regular basis. :

. Requested mformatlon isreceivedin a ti‘m_ely fashion. 4.7143 94.29
The Board is proactrve in developmg an effectlve commumcatlon _ 4.8571 97.14
strategy for the Corporatlon . '

The Company/Corporatlon Secretary adv1ses Board mernbers 4.5714 91.43
regularly on matters of governance and the apphcable Iaw '

Range Mean Score 4.7302 94.60
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TOTAL'SCORE

Overall ratmg (Total Score Number of Range |tems (8))

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue generatlon
Revenue from service rendermg grew in the year by 6. 1% from KES 1.18B recorded _
year 2020/21 to KES 1 .25B in the financial year 2021/22, Phytosamtary services contini
the leading revenue earner at 72% followed by seed certification services as shown in fi
Improved revenue from phytosamtary services was attrlbuted to services rendered at the border
pomts and JKIA : T -

Flgure 1 Graphlcal representatlon of proportlonate Revenue generatlon from rendermg
service = -

. Revenue from exchange of services

© w Phytosanitary = Seed Certification = Plant Variety Services ||l.A_naly'tical Laboratory Services

Mombasa Office registered a declme in revenue due to waived charges on tea coffee and herbs.
Revenue dipped from KES 222M in financial year 2020/21 to 155M in ﬁnanc1a1 year 2021/22 a
dechne of 30%. Figure 2 shows an lllustratlon of the dip.

R_eveh_ue generated from seed certiﬁcation services. was fairly constant at 277 niill__ion.
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Expendltnre

Employee emoluiments moreased by 1. 9% due to casual employment Board expenditure reduced
by.19.8% due to some board meetings being held vutually Expendlture on-donor funded projects
dec by.63.4% due to reduced funding as many countries. suspended fundmg programs. In fotal
expendltme increased by 32, 7% from KES 1.39B to KES I 53B mamly due to mcreased act1v1t1es
after the COVID pandemlc v : AT

i

ENVIRONIENTAL AND SUSTAINAB[LITY REPORTIN G

.several Corporate Soclal Sustamablhty (CSS) act1v1t1es were
. had a target. of five (5)- activities and this target was met
s that were carried out. The activities were carried out in Nakuru,
ale a1rob1 Em ) and Ki le. The activities involved renovations of bualdmgs training the
youth as well as conservatlon of the env1ronment

In the 021-2022 ﬁnanmalryear,

ittty

The aot1v1t1e_s_ also target_ed the yQuth,-chddren'a_nd environmental oonserv_ation_ as tabu1ated-below:

. 1. | Kitale Regional Office -~~~ .| . Pupils = - Renovatlon of

3 [ . ... |Classrooms

- 2. ‘| NakuruRegional Office -~ | - Children Donation of

= ' o fooditems .

§§ 3. | Nairobi, Headquarters ' Youth in the Slums | Capacity -~

-’“T _ R T e .| Building

EJ 4 Training Youth on Phytosanitary Youth in Agribusiness . | Capacity

o Matters in Eﬁfeotlve Trade in Kenya T | Building -

y 3 | During the 3 Ph GEEEIEENS R S : R

[ | 1 Conferenice (virtu:

%L( . I September 2021 Loy R LT P e ree T

Sy 5. Kltale Regzonal Ofﬁoe . Envuonmental Tree planting -

J { G G s : conservatlon Sl
1. Renovatmn of Classrooms at Top Statlon anary School Kltale, Trans Nzola County

3 Top Statlon Prlmary School 1s a pubhc school nelghbourmg KEPHIS K1ta1e ofﬁoe about two’

! ]. kllometres from the main gate ji: has a populanon of 750 learners from grade one to class eight ,

i‘J with.others i in pre—prlmary level The schooI management approached KEPHIS requestmg support

for renovations of four classrooms at a cost of KES. 251,315, the request was approved by the
Managmg Director. The renovation works were carried out by a contracted service provider to

successful completion by the end of August 2021. The classrooms were officially commissioned
in the financial year.
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KEPHIS staff donating food items to Bethesda Children’s Home in N,
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.__‘,_,_.:,Cla‘s_s:toom. _'9:1'0:' » e

aC lldréﬁ’s Home,NyandarlIa ounty R
KEPHIS received a request to assist children at Bethesda Children’s Homg i Nyandarua County,
An approval of KES 30,000 to ans, tice ar

ten bags of maize were donated by the Kitale and Nakuru
thiscost.- -~ A R e NI

.-

yéndar_da@ County
4. Civic Awareness of the Youth through the Voice of Sports Event
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fmuthoni

Caaferine Mura,

com;ilete reglstratmn of exportmg cmhpany by KEPHJS
5. Envnronmental Conservatmn by Plantmg Trees on the International Day of Plant Health

The Kitale Regional office planted fruit trees during the International Day of Plant Health, Fifty
indigenous trees were also planted at the Eldoret Office to mark the day. |
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"In accordanee
regulatory éntities ‘shall remit info Consohdated Find; ‘pinety per centum: of its surplus funds

'-REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

‘ The Dlrectors subrmt the1r report together with the audited ﬁnanmal statements for the year ended

J une 30, 2022 whwh show the state of the corporatlon S affairs.

'Prlnclpal actwrtles :

The prmc1pal act1v1t1es of th Corporatlon are as expounded in the KEPHIS legal framework i.e.
_ Plant ‘Variety Protectlon Seed Certification,” Analytical -Chemistry Laboratory ‘Services and

Phytosamtary Serv1ces others 1nclude Corporate Nature Actmtres Pro_lect 1mp1ementatron and
Support serv1ces - , .

Results

The ; esults of the entrty for the year ended June 30 2021 are set out on pages 1 to s.

Surplus Remlsswn Lo

_-:1th Sect1on 219 (2) of the Pubhc Fmanc1a1 Management Act regulatlons

reported in the audlted ﬁnanc1al statements. after the end of each ﬁnancml year In ﬁnanc1al year
2021/22 KEPHIS had no surplus hence Zero remlssmn

Audrtors

' The Auditor General is responsrble for the statutory audit &f the corporation in aceordance wrth' '
: Art:cle 229 of the Const1tut1on of Kenya and the Pubhc Audlt Act 2015,

By Order o_f the Board

Secretary to the Board of l)lrectors, KEPHIS

‘Date: 30ﬂl March 2023
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- STATEMENT {)F DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

L ":Sectlon 81 ef the Pubhc F mance Management Act 2012_and sectlon 16 of the KEPH[S ActNo

o operatmg results of the corporatlon for the period. The Directors are also requ1red to ensure that

The Dlrectors ;are respons1b1e for the preparat10n and presentatton of the corporatlon s ﬁnanelal
statements wh"‘, V¢

-accountmg pohc1es and '(v1). ‘makmg accountmg estlmates :that are reasonable in the -
c1rcumstances : ; : S : -

. The Dlrectors accept respon51b1]1ty for the cerporatmn 'S fmanc1a1 statements, which have been-

“manner. requlred by the PFM Act, 2012 and the KEPHIS Act, The Dlrecters are of the opinion that

*transactions’ during’ the. fmanc1a1 year ended. June 30 2022 and of the corporatlon 5 ﬁnancral
- position as at that date. L :
" The' Directors further confirm the completeness of the accountlng records malntamed for the

as Well as the adequacy of the systems of mtemal ﬁnanc1al control

Nothmg has come to the attention of the Dlrectors to mdtcate that the corporatlon w111 not remain a
_ .*--gomg concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

“The entity’s financial statements were approved by the Board on &’ ”ifﬂ:!efﬂé’f 2022 and
 signed on its. behalf by:

- Mr. Peter We Kmyua o -
. :_CHA]RMAN BOARD OF DIRECTORS

l"

of 2012, fequire he Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of KEPHIS, whic i
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the corporatlon at the end of the financial year ; and the.

the corporation keeps proper .accounting records which- disclose with. reasonable accuracy the_
financial posmon of the corporatlon The D1rectors are also respons1b1e for safeguardlng the assets

of the corperatmn

) 1 tto .the'preparatlon and fair presentat10n of the. ﬁnanmal
ments,’ and ensurmg that they-are fre from materi statements, whether ‘due to' etror or
,j,_safeguardmg the_ ets of the_ corporation; (v),selectmg and applymg appreprlate .

prepared usmg appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent Jjudgements and
estimates, in conformlty with International Public Sector Accountmg Standards (IPSAS), and in the

the” corporatlon s financial statements give a true and fair view of the._state of corporation’s

corporatlon which have been rehed upon in the preparation of the. corporatlon $ ﬁnanc1a1 statements

Approval of the financial statements

-.————.

Prof TheophllusM Mutm
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ircumstances, the::accuracfy.a’nd_. vahdtty of the investments baléncé'totallihg
0,000,000 reflected in statement of financial position could not be confirmed as at

|twasconducted i-ni accordance with Ihte_rhétibhél Standards_of Suprerh_é! Audjt
(ISSAls). | am independent. of the Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service

irements applicable to performing audits of financial statéments in Kenya. | believe
the a dit-evidence l-have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ualified opinion.. -~ .~ S T S

I |t Matters o

Keyr audit 'métter's"aref those matters that_, 'in'my"prOféséion'él judgment, are of most

inthe year under.review. -

- -significance in the audit of the financial statements.. There were no key audit matters to
. Tepor T T o

'REPORT - ON  LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF - PUBLIC

performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention. to cause me to believe that

public resources have not been .app!ied_'IawaII'I:y'arnd__ in an effective way.

As: equfed byAmCIG 229(6) of _thé ‘CIOﬁSt:i'tuﬁph;-_'.Tb:aééjd on the audit-.zproé'edures

Basis for Conclusion

- The audit wias condusted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard reqires that |

comply with ethical requirements and plan and ‘perform ‘the audit to obtain assurance

- -about: whether the ‘activities, financial transactions-and- information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects; with the ‘authorities that

to provide a basis for my conclusion..

gover them. | believe that the audit evidence I have obtained: is-sufficient and appropriate

'REPORT-ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT

AND-:GOVERNANCE .~ -

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit

procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to .
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

“The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSA] 2330. The standards

require that I plan and perform: the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were

operating ‘effectively,.in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained'is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for r'ny_conclusion'.,_

Report 6f the Auditor-Generdl on Kenya Plant Health Iﬁspe,ci‘orate Service for the year ended-30 June, 2033

ement in accordance with ISSAI-130.0n Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical -
bilities in accordance - with. the ISSAIl and: in accordance with ~other ethical




B ~misstatements, whe _e'__"duet

- Responsrbllltres of Management and Board of Dlrectors

'Management is responsrble for the preparatlon and falr presentatlon
.':-'statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Stans
: :‘TBaSIS) and -for ‘mairitaining “effective internal controls s Manageme
necessary to enable the prepar’atron of' finaricial statements‘= that are fre
aud or error and for its ass sment of th .
of mternal controls sk manage; nt and overall governanc FRTTIRER e

E In prepanng the financial. statements Management |s responS|b!e for'as

"Inspec orate Service's ability to sustam its services, disclosing,-as applicabl
related to- sustalnablhty of services and using the’ applicable basis of accounti
Management Is aware of the rntentlon to termlnate the Inspectorate Serwce 0
operatrons SO : . e : L :

ewewmg: the "feff, fctrveness cof how the Inspectorate monators -
_ﬁce WIth rele' an

S imatenal mrsstatement whether due to"fraud. or error
and;to 1s‘ e.an audltors report_that includes my oprmon in accordanc_e vithithe p

of Section:48 of the: Pubhc,Au it Act; 2015 and submit the audit report in‘compliance wrth'
Artlcle 229(7) of the: Conistit ron Reasonable assurance rs a hlgh Ievel of assurance; but
is not a. guarantee that an’ cor | always detect
a matenal mlsstatement and weakness when lt eX|sts Mlsstatements can arlse from fraud
sidered material  if, - and[\ndually or.in. the aggregate they - _ OU!d -
: b ). ] uenCe the economlc demsrons of users taken on the baS|s ‘
-of these fanancral statements I R PN

‘ade of the frnancral statements a complrance audlt is planned and
‘ performed to expres' conclusron‘*about whether, in all-material respects the activities,
'*-,fmancral transactlons ‘and “information - refiected “in’ “the’ fmanmat "?statements are . jn

“compliancé with the authontles that"govern them and that publlc resources aré applied i in
an effectlve way,"in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution « "
and submit the audit report |n comphance wrth Artlcle 229(7) of the Constltutlon - et

Report of the Audxtor—General on Kenya Plant. Healrh Inspec r'ate Serv:ce for the year ended 30 June 2022
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er, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
ompliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
rnal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
ccordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the' Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
-audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the intemal control that
be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
: 2sign of opera of one or more of the internat confrol components does not
a relatlvely low ievel the risk that misstatements' caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material‘in relation to the financial stateménts- being: audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functlons

Because of its mherent limitations, internal controls may ¢ npt prevent detect
~ misstatements and instances of non-compllance Also, prolechons of any’ evaluatlon of
effectiveness to ‘future periods are subject to the risk that controls” may. ‘bécome
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphance wnth the
. pol|C|es and procedures may detenorate _

As part- of an audit conducted in accordance wnth ISSAls; | exercise profess;onal
judgement and malntaln professmna[ skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identlfy and assess the risks of material ‘misstatement of the fmanclal statements
o ~ whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
B _risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
' my oplnion The risk of not detect:ng a material mlsstatement resulting from fraud is
e hlgherithan for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
lntentlonal omlsszons misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

IR T § Eva[uate the approprlateness of accountlng pohcles used and the reasonableness of
[J ( accounting estimates and related dlsc!osures made by the Management '

. Conc[ude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the apphcabfe basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
L exists related to-events or COI’IdItEOﬂS that may cast significant doubt on the Inspectorate
 Service's ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
- financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion, My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
, However, future events or condltlons may cause the Inspectorate Serwce to cease to
- . sustaln its services.

» Evaluate the overal[ presentat:on ‘structure and content of the f:nancnal statements,
LJ - including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
~ underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentatlon

L ¢ Obtain sufﬁment appropriate audtt evndence regarding ‘the financial information and
business activities of the Inspectorate Service to express an opumon on the fmanmal
statements, :
LJ

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service for the year ended 3 0 June, 2022
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. Perform such other procedures as l consrder necessary in the crrcu

anagement regardrng among other matters £
audit findings, mcludrng any srgnl-

urrng the. audrt

a communrcate wrth the M
* and timing of the audit and srgnrfrcant
in rnternal control that are |dent|fred d
Management wrth a statement that ) have comphed wr h.

mmunicate with. them all re

rding- rndependence and co
bly be thought to bear on my rndepe e

1 also provrde

: requrrements rega
that may reasona

Iated safeguards

other matters
apphcable re

‘Nairobi © -

26 April, 2023
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Revente from non-exchange transactions -
Public cbntr'ibutions and donations ' 6 | 45,099 86,031
Transfers from other governments—gifts and services-in- 7 |- 160,500 200,000
kind ‘ ' :
: _ _ _ | . 205,599 286,031
Revenue from exchange transactions ‘ . o
Rendering of services . . - 8 1,250,270 | 1,178,004
Hire of Facilities _ 9 6,282 | 2,672
Fmance mcome-extemal investments- 10 - 155 1,299
Other income . 1 1536 2,305
R h ' ' 1,258,243 1 1,184,281

Total revenue ' 1,463,842 | 1,470,312
Expenses: _ _
Emplovee costs , ' 12 654,217 639,619
‘Board Expenses . , 13 23,847 29,_7 50
Depreciation and amortlzatlon expense i4 04,891 89,.416

| Repairs and maintenance 15 70,538 59,389
Grants and subsidies o - 16 | 25288 66,699
General expenses o | 17t 662,862 500,112
Total expenses : 1,531,642 ; 1,384,985
Other gains/(losses) ’ R | o

| Gain on sale of assets 18 393 157
Gain on foreign exchange transactions 19 1,230 | 744
Increase/Decrease in provision for doubtful debts 30 (4,346) -9,412
Total other gains/(losses) ' (2,723 -8,511
Surplus/Deficit for the period | (70,‘524) 76,816

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 2022 '

The notes set out on pages 9 to 43 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. :
The financial statements set out on pages ! to 48 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managmg Dlrector A 'Dirctor Corp. Services Chairman of the Board
Prof. Theophllus M. Mutai Mr. Bartonjo Cheptarus Hon. Peter Weru Kinyua
CPAK Member No. 4391 _
Date 30 March2023  Date..32[22 /9\‘”23 nate....%.""f..’?.’."i[ Do
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STATEMENT OF F]NAN CIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022 __

SRRy

ssets

Current assets _
Cash and cash equivalents = = 20 23,721 96,252
Receivables from exchange transactions 21/22 138,383 121,451
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 23 5,311 6,239
Inventories 24 63,175 25,926
Prepayments 25 55,784 72,868
' ‘ 286,373 322,735
Non-current assets '
Property, plant & equipment 26/27 1,072,583 1,116,649
Investments 28 60,000 60,000

Long term receivables : - -
' 1,132,583 1,176,649

Total assets . 1,418,956 1,499,384
1 Liabilities '

Current labilities

Trade and other payables from exchange tl‘ﬁl’lSElC'ElOﬂS 29 126,555 113,957

Provisions i 30 7,693 8,541
t Deferred income ’ _ 31 57,197 79,685

Payments received in advance _ 32 9,474 8,641

Current Borrowing ' - -

' ' 200,920 210,825

Net assets _

Reserves 1,288,560 [,28E, 744

Surplus/(deficit) (70,524) - 76,816

Total Net Assets & Liabilities 1,418,956 1,499,384

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 43 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
by:

Manraging Director Ag; 1re tor Corp. Services Chairman of the Board

Prof. Theophilus M. Mutui Mr, Bartonjo Cheptarus Hon. Peter Weru Kinyna
CPAK Member No. 4391 )

Date...30" March 2023.  Date. 3, "[*’?’/”‘”‘3 " Date..:.é?/f?/ﬁ%é..




STATEMENT OF CH
2022

ANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YE

AR ENDED 30 JUNE

- “Kshs 000 | Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000’

At July 1,2020 451,194 760,550 | 1,211,744
Surplus/Deficit for the period e 76,816 ‘ _ 76,816
At June 30, 2021 451,194 , 837,366 | o 1,288,560
At July 1,2021 451,94 | 837,366 1,288,560
Surplus/Deficit for the period | 70,524) | (70,524) |
At June 30,2022 451,194 766,842 1,218,036

3
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“For the year ended June 30, 2022

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Cash flows from operating actwutles
Receipts
Public contributions and donations & 22,611 71,020
Transfers from other governments—gifis and services-in-kind 7 160,500 200,000
Rendering of services 8 1,250,270 L, 178,004
Hire of Facilities a 6,282 2,672
Finance income-external investments 10 155 1,299
Other income Pl 2,766 3,050
Total Receipts 1,442,584 1,456,045
Paymenis
Employee costs 12 654,217 . 639,619
Board Expenses 13 23,847 29, 750
Repairs and maintenance 15 70,538 59,380
Grants and subsidies 16 25,288 66,699
CGeneral expenses 17 662,862 500,112
Remission fo National Treasury -
Total Payments 1,436,752 £,295,569
Net cash flows from operating activities 5,832 160477
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipnient and infangible assets (50,914) . (74,706),
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment 482 200
Decrease/(inerease) in current receivables {21,197) £9,356)
Decrease/(increase) inventories (37,249) 3,767
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments 17,084 4,527
{Decrease)Increase in payables 12,597 {20,215)
{Decrease)/Increase Payment received in advance 833 {436)
Net cash flows used in investing activities {78,363) {96,219)
Cash flows from ﬁnancmg_twntles
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayment of borrowings - -
Increase in deposits - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (72,531) 64,258
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2021 96,252 |- 38,993
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2022 23,721 96,252
Per Financial Statements 23,721 96,252
il
d?“ﬁmé -.} :
Managing Director AZ. Director Corp. Services Chairman of the Board
Prof. Theophilus M. Mutui Mr. Bartonjo Cheptarus Mr, Peter Weru Kinyua
CPAK Member No. 4391

Date...30™® March 2023.

Date. 3 .?./.?. %(}v&g?

Date...a‘g%é. &&?j
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- Annual Report and Financial Statements

Kenya Pla'nt‘ Health Inspectorate Service,

For the year ended June 30, 2022

1.~ General information .

3. Adoption of new and revised Standards

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, -

- Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service (KEPHIS) was established in 1996 through Legal”
Notice No. 305 until the enactment of Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service Bill, 2011 in
December 2012. KEPHIS is domiciled and is a regulatory body for the protection of plants,
seeds and plant varieties. ' - ‘ '

2.  Statement of Compliance and Basis of preparation
™
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis unless stated otherwise.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the corporation’s accounting
policies. The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which
is the functional and reporting currency of the corporation and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (Ksh000).

r—— ]
2 e

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The
accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented. :

£
-

Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended 30
June 2022

B )
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inancial Statements
une 30, 2022

Applicable: 1% January 2023
The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial
reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and
useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

-of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity’s future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by:

* Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash flows and
the objective for which the asset is held;

* Applying a single forwgrd-lookihg expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing;
and

* Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a
strong link between an Entity’s risk management strategies and the
accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social
Benefits

Applicable: 1% January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a
reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social
benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial
stateménts and general-purpose ﬁnancial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;
and

(c} The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity’s financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.




Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service,
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Amendments to Other
IPSAS resulting from
IPSAS 41, Financial
Instruments

Applicable: ist January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the gu1dance related to th
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued. |
b) Amendments to [PSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 41 was issued.’
¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for
accounting for ﬁnancial guarantee contracts which were
inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Other improvements to
IPSAS

Applxcable ¥ January 2023

e IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General
Government Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefils

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

e IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement
Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1% January 2023.

-]

-
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FIPSAS 43

Applicable I* January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that
lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that
faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis
_for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on
the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an
Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non-
Cutrent Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued
Operations

v )

.

 results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

Applicable % Jan uary 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

statement of financial performance,

S G A S

e

ii.  Early adoption of standards
The Entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021/2022.

10
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Revenue recognition
i)  Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Fees _
" The Corporation recognizes revenues from fees when the event occurs and the ass

recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached th
would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead’
of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
Corporation and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured
at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be
measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of financial
position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of
the assets that has been acquired using such funds

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of

total estimated labour hours. k) .
Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to =r
the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable. [ L
-
Sale of goods -
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of L
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when L
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic i
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. L
Interest income &_‘
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that o
asset’s net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding B
to determine interest income each period.
|
hand
11 wd
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get information

orlgmai budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly on 30
rch 2017. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved
udget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The
_“additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the corporation upon receiving
the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity did
“ not record any additional appropriation on the 2021-2022 budget.

' The corporation’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and
expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of
financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the
financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparlson of budget and
actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented
in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are
also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

performance has been presented under section five of these financial statements.

¢) Taxes

Government grant is not subject to tax. The Corporation just like the Ministries of
Government, operates on non-commercial basis. Surpluses are necessarily alréady utilized
on purchase of assets. In addition, surplus relates to GOK grant.

{
h ) "d) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
i of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be

e
“ .

R replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful
R lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
{ recoghition criteria are satisfied. All other repalr and maintenance costs are recognized in
i surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

[z

—

The depreciable amounts of assets (cost or valuation amount less residual value) are
‘ allocated over the estimated useful life of the assets. Depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line method. Depreciation is applied on pro rata basis for assets acquired i.e. from
month of acquisition. Assets disposed of during the year are not depreciated.

;L : 12

——

Fo—




ith Inspe

Kehy% plant Hea
nd Financial sta
30 2022

Annual Reporta
For the yeaY ended June 2

The Corp
o Freehold land -

Buildings 2%
Plant and Mac

[ ]

o Motor Vehicles 2

s Office Equipment

. =3 12 5%)
L ]

Furniture
1aborato
o Computers

The following'residu
. Plantand M

L

| J

L]
L2

¢) Leases

Operating Jeases are
t0.ownership of the
as an operating exp

) Intangible assets

Intangible &
assels acquired
Following initi
amortization 3

in
al

d

excluding capitali
ficit in the period

surplus Ot de
The useful life 0

oration applies

and fixtur )

al values hav
achinery 10%
Motor Vehicles 10%

Furniture and Fixte

Laboratory Equ
Computers and

Office Equipm

ssets acquired S

ctorate gervice,

tements

the following rates of depreciation:

nil

hinery 12.5%

5%

12.5%

jxtures 5%
ipment 5%
Accessories 5%
ent 5%

Jeases that do not transfer substantially all
{eased item 10 the C_orporation. Qperating
a straight

ense in surplus of deficit on

eparately are initially recognized at

a non-exchang® transaction 18
recognition, intangible assets
accumulated jmpairment los

sts, are not capital

d development €0
in which the expenditure is

s is agsessed as either

are €
ses. Internally

vis

f the'intangible asset:

13

the risks and benefits in

lease payment
line basis oV

their fair value
arvied at cost

ized an
incurred.

er the lease {etm.

C
at the date of the eX

Jess any accum

generated intangible

d expenditure ist

finite OF indefinite.

cidental
s are recognized Li

ost. The cost of intangible
change.

eflected f

fo—

ulated
assets,

=

»

L : = L
S FE—
s vl C.,__ -

L.




Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service,
Annual Report and Financial Statements
. For the year ended June 30, 2022

‘2) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project
are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset wil] be available for use or
sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

The availability of resources to complete the asset
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment
annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

h) Financial instruments
Financial assets
“ Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
X Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit,
: ( & loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financiai
e

assets, as appropriate. The Corporation determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. '

L) ' Loans and receivables

L discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or
“ deficit.
L

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed

maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Corporation has the positive

intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initia] Mmeasurement, held-to-maturity

investments are measured gt amortized cost using the effective interest method, less

impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premjum on
14 '
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acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rat
losses arising from impairment are reco gnized as surplus or deficit.

Impairment of. “financial assets

rting date whether there is objective evidence that
ancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a

Corporation of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact

on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset ot the Corporation of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following

indicators:
$ The debtors or a Corporation of debtors are experiencing significant financial

difficulty ,
» Default of delinquency in interest or principal payments
» The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization

The Corporétion assesses at each repo
a financial asset or a Corporation of fin

in estimated future cash flows

» Observable data indicates a measurable decrease
at correlate with defaults)

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions th

i) Financial liabilities _
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair »
value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity i ]

determines the classification of its financia) liabilities at initial recognition., All financial (y D

liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributabie transaction costs.

13
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" Loans and borrowing
er initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

rtized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or
ficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method
mortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
quisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

.' k) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
- received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the
inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for,
as follows: '

L » Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

£ » Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
_ of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
‘L borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
- However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for

a nominal charge, that class of inventory is méasured at the lower of cost and cutrent
- replacement cost. '

- Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
R estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,

or distribution.

L N . kY
Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary course of operations of the Corporation.

] ’
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iges in accounting policies and estimates

Corporation recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application
1s.impractical.

i) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Corporation provides defined contribution plan under which it pays fixed contributions
into a separate Corporation {(a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund
obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income as employee
emoluments in the year in which they become payable. -

!ﬁ.‘ ' k) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on
the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are
reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on
that date. The US Dollar closing rate as at 30 June 2021 was Kshs.. 107.85. Exchange
differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as

income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
. I) Borrowing costs
i
; Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment.
= Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired
i or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction
L of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial
! performance.
.
'E_1
-
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m) Related parties .
The Corporation regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control |

individually or jointly or exercise significant influence over it, or vice versa. Members of the

Board or Directors are regarded as parties.

n) Service concession arrangements
The Corporation analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,
where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, KEPHIS recognizes that asset
when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together
with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price.

In the case of assets other than *whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the
arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an
asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a cotresponding liability, adjusted by a
cash consideration paid or received.

o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at
various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial
statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to
authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end of the financial year.

p) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

q) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on

the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

19
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 Significant judgments and Sources of estimation uncertainty

 The preparation of the corporation's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
" management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods. ‘ '

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concetning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Corporation based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developrents may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Corporation. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions ‘when they occur. IPSAS
1.140 Ny - ‘

Useful lives and residuaal values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity
The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

Availability of funding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

VYVYV VY

Provisions

Provisions were determined on consideration of relevant factors affecting receivables and in
line with the organizational policies and procedures. General provision for doubtful debts was
maintained at 7.5% and 100% for debts over three years.

20
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ulture Livestock
d Fisheries/State

partments and Agencies (MDAs

160,500 | - - 160,500
160,500 - - 160,500
JKIA Plant Inspection Unit - 335,990 310,371
Plant Quarantine_ Station 27,837 19.139
Muguga Muguga _ s _
Namanga Boader Post 114,696 67,766
Loitoktok Boader Post 41,926 19,708
ICD Nairobi 4,758 1,386
Headquaters Phytosanitary 11,328 23,606
Headquaters Molecular 5,667
Laboratory 3,143
Mombasa Chief Grader 154,941 222,114
Lungalunga Boarder Post 42,369 11,793
Phytosanitary | 0 42 Boarder Poor 43,726 29,905
Bura Station 143 225
Shimoni 51 -
Naivasha 12,193 12,597
Kisumu Main Office 10,764 7,815
Busia Boarder Post 56,152 83,558
Isebania Boarder Post 30,706 10,437
Embu Regional Office 11,163 10,053
Movyale Boarder Post 7,703 7,298
Timau Station 5,666 4,325
Nyeri 1,179 2,119
22
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.otal Phytosanitary - _
Revenue R 918,956
Headquarters Seed Section 43916
Nalkuru Main Office 62,586
Kitale Main office 99,973
Malaba Boarder Post 62,627
Seed Certification | Eldoret Station 3,178
Swam 506
Lwakhakha 3,930
Total Seed Cgrﬁﬁcatmn 27 6',71 5 278,543
Revenue . .
| glan". Variety Headquarters 21,651 12,617
ervices _
Analytical
Laboratory Services Headquarters 32,948 38,485
1,250,270 1,178,004

Total revenue from the rendering of services

0. Rental revenue from facilities

Conference and Accommodation

6282 |

2,672

Total rentals

6,282

2,672

The revenue is generated from fees char

ged for use of the corporation’s conference and

accommodation facility at the headquarters.

10, Finance income

155

1,299

Interest from Mortgage Deposit and other deposits

Total finance income — external investments 155 1,299
Interest Received 0 0
Interest receivable 155 1,299
[ Total Interest reccivable 155 1,299

This is revenue from staff mortgage fund and interest negoti

23
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11. Other income

Miscellaneous receipts 1,536

2,305

Total other income 1,536

2,305

Incomes received from rented houses in'Headquarters, Nakuru and Kitale

L Basic Salary | 312,496 303,423

;o Casual Labour 63,889 55,387

I Gratuity and Pension 49,648 42,051

g | House Allowarnce - : ' 110,268 115,269

“ 4,1 | Transfer Allowance | 1,265 1,200

- Other Personal Allowances | 47,643 49,348

I Overtime Allowance | 2272 | 2,714

Passage & Leave Expenditure - 4,222 4,720

e ;- Medical Expenses 56,124 56,019

LR Staff life and accident cover . 6,390 8,938

o ] Staff Counselling & support ' ' - 50
| services :

j Total employee cost ' . 654,217 639,619

‘13. Remuneration of directors

Medical Expenses

Board Committees and Seminars 21,810 27,835
Chairman's Honoraria T ) 914 1,044
Total director emoluments ~ - ' 23,847 29,750

14, Depreciation and amortization expense

24
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17. General expenses

18,390

Electricity 19,797
Water & Conservancy 1,020 1,591
Telephone 4,317 3,626
Postal & Courier 5,194 4,527
Internet Services 19,760 14,033
Local travel & Accommodation 278,068 153,360
External Travel 22,421 2,082
Publishing & printing 45,776 73,915
Advertising & publicity 3,306 | 1,906
Trade shows & Exhibitions 10,089 - 546
Rents & Rates 8,017 8,669
‘Hire-of transport . 1,353 - 443
Training (stakeholders) - 6,832 4,724
Catering services _ 6,892 5,448
Insurance premiums - vehicles & other assets 5,582 5,832
Laboratory stores 32,781 31,551
Education & library 1,817 1,447
Uniform & clothing 2,203 4,392
Purchases of NPT DUS PC and farm inputs 7,189 8,018
General office supplies and Stationery 12,756 14,103
Sgpply and accessories for computers and 27,170 26257
Printers
Fuel & lubricants 34,045 30,611
Bank Charges 4,941. 4,369
Guards & cleaning services 30,807 26,954
Contracted professional services 16,772 8,170
Others - Miscellaneous 836 579
Contr}but}on to private and international 3,703 5.887
organisations
Farmers demos & field day food & ration 33,444 21,029
Audit fees 1,922 0
Compensation and ex-gratia 865 1,443
Corporate social responsibility 901 737
Staff Training 12,299 15,473
Total General Expenditure 662,862 500,112

18. Gain on sale of Assets

26
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KCB JKIA 65 2,021
KCB Kephis Embu 1102966649 3 1LS
' 534 4,187

Un-deposited funds 1,593 2,224

Total cash and cash equivalents *23,721 26,252

* Total project grants deferred and included in the total cash and cash equivalent of Kshs. 23.7
million isKshs.10.2 million |

21.Receivables from _Exbhange Transactions

Currént receivables o

Service debtors 163,064 140,939
Less: impairment allowance (24,682) (19,488)
Total current receivables 138,383 121,451

22. Impairment Allowance computation

7.5%

7.5%

7.5%

7.5%

-100%

5,563,377

1,190,235

3,345,524

1,121,075

13,461,439

24,681,651

23. Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Current receivables

Staff advances 36 30
Interest receivable 2,099 2,198
Medical Advance 3,176 4,010
Total current receivables 5,311 6,239

28
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27. Intangible Assets

Cost

At beginning of the year 17,502 17,502
Additions | - -
At end of the year 17,502 17,502

This is for a Seed system and JEICS system supported by Trade Mark East Africa.

28. Investment Property .

At beginning of the year 60,000 60,000
Additions - -]
Depreciation - -
At end of the year 60,000 60,000

The investment is a deposit at .Kenya Commercial Bank of Kshs 60 million to finance staff

mortgage that was established in 2009.

Interest Receipts

155

Surplus

135

Cash and Cash equlvant -
Interest Receivable 2,099
Total Current Assets 2,099
Non-Current Assets

Long term receivable from exchange transactions 60,000
Net Assets 62,099
Capital Fund 60,000
Accumulated Surplus. 2,099
Total Net assets & Liabilities 62,099

32
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31. Deferred income

Public contributions and donations : 10 23 ‘ 15,501
Donated assets - _ 46,960 64,184
Total deferred income ‘ : ; 57,198 79,685

The deferred movement is as follows

Balance brought forward N ' - ' 79,685
 Additions B - - : - 22,611
Transfers to Capital fund (2,586)
Transfers to income statement (25,288)
Transfer to depreciation o (17,225)
| Balance carried forward ' 57,198

32.Payment Received in Advance

Prepayment Liability

33. Financial Risk Management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The entity’s overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the
g potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
8 entity does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended
1o customers with an established credit history.

d
'g , The entity’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and

34
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' deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial -

(i)

investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past expetience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors, The amounts presented
in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the entity’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing
the entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained is made up as follows: '

Kshs. |~ Kshs. | Kshs. | Kshs.
‘000 0000 | 0000 | c000”

At 30 June 2022
Recelva‘bles from exchange 140,186 128,674 | 11,512 22,878
transactions
Receivables from non- 9,737 9,737 i
exchange transactions -
Total 149,923 138411 | 11,512 22,878
At 3¢ June 2021
Recewa.bles from exchange | 140,939 131317 | 9,622 19,488
transactions '
Receivables from non- 6.239 6.239 i -1
exchange transactions
Total 147,178 137,556 | 9,622 19,488

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors sets the entity’s credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows.
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“The table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. .Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant

At 30 June 2022 _ o 1 :
Trade payables . 79,161 ! 13,301 2,326 - 94,789
Provisions - 6,732 - e . 961 7,693 |
Deferred income 57,197 - -l - 57,197
Employee benefit 19,184 i . 19,184
obligation . . l - -
| Total : 156,503 13,301 23264 1,922 | 178,863
At 30 June 2021 ‘ ' ‘
Trade pavables 84,185 5,912 2,725 592 4 93,414
Provisions. 961 S - 1,922 2,883
Deferred income 79,685 -1 -1 - 79,685
‘Employee benefit 19,556 - - - 19,556
“pbligation
Total : 184,387 5,912 2,725 2,514 195,538

(iii) Market risk

“The board has pﬁt in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. ' ‘

2 r
e

The entity’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
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a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases
of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice
and conversion at the time of payment is done usmg the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the entity’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and Eﬂ
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk form future commerclal transactions and

At 30 June 2022

Financial assets . ' _ .

Cash 90,122 | . 6,130 96,252

Debtors - 126,921 | 14,018 140,939

Total financial assets 217,043 20,148 237,230

Financial Liabilities . _
Trade and other payables 111,832 2,125 113,957 Z‘
Total financial liabilities 111,832 2,125 113,957 ¥
i‘;if;’(f;ﬁ:‘h:;; rency 105,198 18,023 123273

masze

recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching ] R
the same with expected payments. : iU
)
L
T
At 30 June 2022 L
Financial assets _
Cash 20,973 2,748 23,721 i
Debtors 116,814 23,372 140,186 iL
Total financial assets 137,787 26,120 163,907 ‘
Financial Liabilitiss . T
Trade and other payables 125,681 874 126,555 u
Total financial liabilities 125,681 874 126,555 ’
Net foreign currency 37,352 (
asset/(liability) 12,106 25,246 L
|
it
b
! i
|
et
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P
!

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

b)

The following table demonstrates the effect on the entity’s statement of

. comprehensive income on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in

the exchange rate of the foreign currency, with all other variables held constant. The

~reverse would also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables

held constant

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

2022 . e | S

USD | 0% £1,802 +1,802
2021

USD - 10% +1,802 - +1,802

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity’s financial condition may be adversely
affected as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The entity’s interest rate risk
arises from bank deposits. This exposes the entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the entity’s
deposits. - '

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with
institutions that offer favourable interest rates. -
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iv) Capital Risk Management

- The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Board’s ability to-
-.continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

Revaluation reserve ] 451,194 451,194 |
Retained earnings R 766,842 837,366
: Total funds _ - B 1,218,036 | _ 1,288,560
| Total borrowings N . 201,056 : 210,825
Less: cash and bank balances ' (23,721) (96,252)
' Net debt/(excess cash and cash 177335 114,573
equivalents) . : . _
Gearing o ' 0.14 0.09

34. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise
- control or exercise significant influence over. its operating and financial decisions. Related
parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

T

o D

Government of Kenya

.

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of KEPHIS holding 100% of eqﬁity (
interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the
entity, both domestic and external. Other related parties include:

L

i) The National Government;

i) Ministry of Agriculture Livestock and Fisheries;
iif)  Key management;

iv) Board of directors

-1 Tl
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‘Transactions with re ” es

a)  Grants from the Government
Grants from National Govt 160,500 I 200,000 |
Total o 160,500 ' 200,000

b) Key management compensation - |
Directors’ emoluments 23,847 29,750
Compensation to the CEO 5,947 : 5,947
Compensation to key management 12,636 12,636
Total ~ 48,333 48,333

35, Surplus Remission o
In accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations, regulatory

entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the
andited financial statements after the end of each financial year. In line with this legal requirement
KEPHIS did not make any surplus during the year (FY 2021/22) and hence no remittance has
been made fo the Consolidated Fund,

36.Events after the Reporting Period
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

~ 37. Ultimate and Holding Entity
KEPHIS is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Agriculture Livestock and Fisheries. Its ultimate

parent is the Government of Kenya.

38. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

he fo]lbwing is the summary of issyes raised b

T
that- were provided to

' shown below with the as

une 30, 2022

‘the

[Mugugaand .

in dispute and are

part of larger
parcels held by
KALRO. The
Corporation
obtained letters of
no objection from

Y the exte;rn
auditor. We have norninate_:_d focal
iate frame within which w

| Nakuru:land are not

e expect th

al auditor,. and management comments: _
persons to resolve the various issues as
i  be resolved.

Lack of KALRO to process
ownership . | sub-division and
titles for titles for the two Not resolved Not p?551ble
parcels of parcels. The 1o project due
. S Prof. by the date
land in process is still : . to the fact that
. Theophilus M. | of submitting
Muguga, ongoing. - . there are other
: Mutuij this report to
Nakuru and . key
. o . Managing the Office of
Kitale. Large | In regard to Kitale X ) stakeholders
Director the Auditor | : )
part of land land, the General mvolved in
in Kitale is in Corporation has -the process.
the hands of | over the years made
grabbers a lot of effort to
' obtain title for the
land and recover
the encroached
portion, These
efforts can only
succeed with fuli
support of the
L Government,
_J
Managing Director Date:30%" March 2023

Prof. Theophilus M, Mutui, PHD
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' APPEND]X II: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

a.

21/22

Recurrent
Grants‘

‘Bank Statement
Date

Amqun_t;(l_(shs!_ :

40,125.000

FY 2021/22

05-08-21

04-11-21 40,125,000 | FY 2021/22
11-02-22 13,375,000 | FY 2021/22
25-02-22 113,375,000 | FY 2021/22
28-03-22 13,375,000 | FY 2021/22
06-05-22 13.375,000 | FY2021/22
16-06-22 13,375,000 | FY2021/22
24-06-22 13,375,000 | FY 2021/22
TOTAL 160,500,000
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